
Meeting papers

Pension Board

Wednesday 17 October 2018 at 12.00 pm

Chairman's Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester





    

Pension Board

Wednesday 17 October 2018 at 12.00 pm

Chairman's Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies.  

Andrea Griffiths

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm the minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on the 
16th April 2018.  

Andrea Griffiths

3  PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER (Pages 7 - 14)

That the Board note the Risk Register and consider whether there 
are any changes that it wishes to recommend to the Pension 
Committee.

Mark Spilsbury

4  BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 (Pages 15 - 22)

The Board is asked to note the report.  

Mark Spilsbury

5  AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT (Pages 23 - 42)

The Board is asked to note the report.  

Mark Spilsbury

6  PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE (Pages 43 - 44)

The Board is asked to note the report.  

Mark Spilsbury

7  PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 

To received a verbal update.  

Mark Spilsbury

8  INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 45 - 56)

The Board is asked to note the report.

Mark Spilsbury

9  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Pension Board to resolve that, in accordance with Section 100 
A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public to be excluded 

Andrea Griffiths



    

from the meeting for the following agenda items because it is likely 
that if members of the public were present at the meeting there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 and 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act, and that 
the public interest in withholding this information could outweigh the 
public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

10  EXEMPT MINUTES (Pages 57 - 58)

To confirm the exempt minutes of the Pension Board held on the 
16th April 2018.

Andrea Griffiths

11  INDEPENDENT ADVISOR REPORT (Pages 59 - 74)

The Board is asked to note the report.

John Arthur

12  PIRC ANNUAL FUND REVIEW (Pages 75 - 100)

The Board is asked to note the report.

Mark Spilsbury

13  BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP 

To receive a verbal update 

Mark Spilsbury

Membership –  Cllr Nigel Moor ,Annette Benson (Gloucestershire University), Sean Collins (Head 
of Pensions, Oxfordshire County Council), Owen Shaw (Member representative) and Jon Topping 
(Head of Finance, Gloucester City Council)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

PENSION BOARD
Minutes of the meeting of the Pension Board held on Monday 16 April 2018 at Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT Sean Collins (Chair)
Annette Benson
Cllr Nigel Moor

Owen Shaw
Jon Topping

59. APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies at the meeting. 

60. MINUTES 

The non-exempt minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2017 were confirmed 
and signed as a true record of that meeting. 

Chairman of the Board, Sean Collins welcomed, Annette Benson, (Financial 
Controller for the University of Gloucestershire), to the meeting. As a point of 
clarification, Annette confirmed that, although she had been Financial Services 
Accountant for a number of years, it had only been in the last year she had 
undertaken the position of Financial Controller at the University. 

Outlining the actions taken since the last meeting, the Head of the Pension Fund, 
Mark Spilsbury, confirmed that: - 

i)      An update on the Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund 
Business Plan 2017-18 would be provided at each Pension Board 
meeting, (the update reported at today’s meeting would be considered at 
item 4 of the agenda); 

ii)      The Pension Board to be invited to comment on the Pension Committee 
Annual Report. It was agreed the report would be circulated to board 
members by email in either August or early September and for board 
members to submit any comments to Mark Spilsbury, Head of the 
Pension Fund. The comments would be noted at the October board 
meeting. 

iii)      An update on the council’s investments to be considered at each Pension 
Board meeting. In the past, a report had been presented to the Pension 
Committee as exempt information by former Independent Advisor, Steve 
Tyson. It was suggested that, for all future meetings, the Head of the 
Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, would present an overview of information 
in the form of several short reports. The name of the replacement 
independent advisor was confirmed as John Arthur.    

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

iv)      Comments made in response to the Pension Fund Risk Register, 
(considered by the Pension Board in October 2017), to be reported to the 
Pension Committee at each meeting. 

v)      The Pension Board to consider the Audit Findings Report on an annual 
arrangement. 

vi)      A performance analysis report would be produced on an annual basis and 
presented to the Pension Board at each autumn meeting. 

Actions by – Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury 

61. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Head of Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, informed members that the performance 
report had been produced by State Street. 

Key points highlighted by the report included: 

1. That the fund’s performance for the period ending December 2017 was not 
specific to Gloucestershire; 

2. The performance data relating to the performance of the Gloucestershire 
Pension Fund, (reported at page 10 of the agenda), would no longer make 
comparisons against benchmark indices but against performance targets; 

3. The ‘client overview compared with strategic benchmark table’ reported on 
page 11 of the agenda would no longer form part of the report and would be 
replaced by the ‘client overview compared with performance target’ 
information; 

The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed that the funds’ performance was in a 
positive position. Whilst the opening months of 2018 had been quite volatile for 
global financial markets, recent reports indicated a positive outcome, with a one 
year return of over 11%.

Members were advised to monitor the mid to long term performance of the fund, 
(reported at 3 and 5 year intervals), both of which were anticipated to provide a 
more revealing and interesting analysis. 

One area of concern that had emerged from the report had been the slight 
underperformance of the Aberdeen Standard Investment mandate. Members were 
advised that, had it not been for the recent move to the Brunel Partnership and the 
high transition costs that had been incurred, a decision would have been made to 
investigate the issue. 

Members supported the intention to replace the symbols used in the ‘ex post risk 
report’, (reported at page 16 of the agenda), and agreed that the suggestion to 
present the information  in an ‘easy to read’ format would be welcomed. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

The performance report would now be presented to the Pension Committee, (and 
continue to be presented on a quarterly basis) The report to include an analysis of 
the total fund, plus an analysis of the Gloucestershire fund. Data relating to other 
funds would not be included in the report. 

Members agreed that the report had provided a useful insight into the performance 
of the fund. The report was noted without further comment or feedback to the 
Pension Committee. 

62. BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE 2017/18 

Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, gave an update on the key tasks 
included within the 2017-18 Business Plan. He confirmed that a detailed review of 
the plan had been undertaken and that work would be ongoing to support the 
development of a new investment strategy. The business plan had received formal 
accreditation in March 2018 and was anticipated to become fully operational by the 
end of April. 

The Annual Report agreed by the Audit Committee in July 2017 had been 
published on the council website in September 2017. The report reflected the 
significant amount of work that had gone into ensuring year end returns had been 
completed and returned within the statutory deadline. The Annual Benefits 
Statement, (reporting very positive results), had been circulated to all pension 
holders. Members welcomed the positivity of the report. 

The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed the dates of two training events 
scheduled to take place prior to the Pension Committee meetings on: - 

Friday 11 May 2018  - Responsible Investment and Carbon Footprint  
Friday 7 September 2018 – Investment Risks and Returns 

Both sessions would be held at Shire Hall between 10 and 11am with a further 
regional event due to be arranged in Oxford. Details of the event in Oxford to be 
circulated to members when known. 

Board members expressed their appreciation at the improvement in relationships 
between officers and employers and endorsed the suggestion that the performance 
of the team might benefit from the appointment of additional employees.  

The Business Plan 2017/18 to be considered by the Pension Committee on 11 May 
2018. 

 
63. RISK REGISTER 

Board members were advised of the changes that had been applied to the Pension 
Fund Risk Register since the board meeting last met in October 2017.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The board noted that one of the changes (risk 9), had been introduced at the 
request of the Director of Strategic Finance to consider the potential risks that might 
emerge during the transition period to State Street Bank under the Brunel Pension 
Partnership. The board was pleased to note no major problems had been 
encountered.

During the discussion, it was suggested that the Pension Committee consider 
adding a new risk to the risk register to identify the potential risks to new mandates 
following the move to the Brunel Partnership. 

The addition of a second risk was also suggested, to consider the risks that might 
arise from the transition to the new business case. 

The board requested that the Risk Register be printed on A3 (coloured) paper for 
ease of reading. 

There were no further comments and the document was noted

Action: 

The Pension Board proposed that the Pension Committee consider the addition of 
two new risks to the Risk Register. 

Risk 1 – To identify the risks to new mandates following the move to the Brunel 
Partnership 

Risk 2 – To identify the risks to the new business case following the move to the 
Brunel Partnership 

64. FUNDING LEVEL REPORT 

Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, gave an update on the Gloucestershire 
County Council Pension Fund. 

Mark informed members that the original update had been received during his 
absence and on inspection had not been as expected. Having contacted Hymans 
Robertson LLP, (author of the report), a further update had been produced with the 
correct information. The updated version of the report had only been received that 
day and was circulated at the meeting. 

Mark explained that the original update, (provided to illustrate the estimated 
development of the funding position of the Gloucestershire County Council Pension 
Fund from 31 March 2016 to 31 March 2018), had been based on ‘estimated’ and 
not ‘actual’ returns. 

In presenting the update, it was reported that the funding deficit level had increased 
slightly and was significantly higher. The funding level reported at the latest formal 
valuation had been 79.7%. As of 31 March 2018, the funding level had risen to 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

83.3%, increasing from a deficit of £435m at 31 March 2016 to a deficit of £442m at 
31 March 2018. It was noted that there had been a slight drop in the deficit in 2017. 

The figures considered at the meeting were based on actual contributions, 
signifying a more realistic position. It was suggested that, for future updates, only 
actual returns should be provided. The update considered at this meeting would be 
considered by the Pension Committee on 11 May 2018.

Some of the key points the board was asked to note included: - 

1. The funding level had dropped over the last quarter due to negative 
investment funds; 

2. Market conditions had remained broadly constant over the same period; 

3. The updated report was prepared using a single set of market related 
assumptions, derived in line with the council’s Funding Strategy Statement; 

4. Contributions would be re-assessed following the 2019 formal valuation

The funding update was noted.  

65. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC 

The Pension Board

RESOLVED:  

That, in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public should be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items because 
it was likely that, if members of the public were present at the meeting, there would 
be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act, and that the public interest in withholding this information 
could outweigh the public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

66. EXEMPT MINUTES 

The exempt minutes of the meetings below were confirmed and noted as accurate 
records of the meetings: - 

Pension Board Meeting – 16 October 2017
Pension Committee Meeting – 10 November 2017 
Pension Committee Meeting – 9 February 2018

67. PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

Head of Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, invited Pensions Administration Manager, 
Alan Marshall, to present the report. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Alan gave a detailed update on the performance of the Gloucestershire Pension 
Fund Administration Team, based on comparisons between the actual percentage 
achievements and the average number of days taken to complete each task 
between 2016/17 and the first 11 months of 2016/17. 

The report was noted. 

68. STRATEGIC ASSET ALLOCATION 

Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, gave a detailed update on the key 
changes between the Strategic Asset allocation, (covering the financial years 
2017/18 to 2019/20), agreed by the Pension Committee in March 2017 and the 
proposed asset allocation agreed on 9 February 2018.

The report was noted.  

69. BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP UPDATE REPORT 

Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, presented the Brunel Business report 
for the period 1January 2018 to 28 February 2018. 

The report was noted. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.00am 

Page 6



Pension Board
17th October 2018

Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Introduction

The Administering Authority is required by the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Regulations to maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) 
and to keep it under review. The FSS is always reviewed as part of the 
Triennial Valuation.

In preparing the FSS, the LGPS Regulations require the Administering 
Authority to have regard to the best practice guidance issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This 
guidance includes the need to identify risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
the measures or controls to be taken to help counter those risks. 

The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in September 
2018 and by the Pension Board in March 2018.

Following feedback from the Pension Board, the Pension Committee have 
agreed that in future a report on the Risk Register will be considered at each 
of their regular quarterly meetings.

Report

The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
indicates the significance of each risk.

As per previous reports the significance of individual risks is measured by a 
scoring system which multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the 
potential impact of such an occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are 
scored 1 – 5 and after multiplying both numbers together, the higher the 
product, the higher the risk.

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls 
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks).

The risks are referenced as follows:

Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)

Since the risk register was last considered by the Pension Board in March 
2018 the following changes have been made:

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Risk 
No

Risk Change

F3 Fall in risk-free returns on 
Government bonds, leading to rise 
in value placed on liabilities.

Residual risk score increased due to 
falling bond yields.

F8 Orphaned employers give rise to 
added costs for the Fund

New Period Comments: Two high 
risk employers without guarantors will 
be leaving the fund between March 
2018 and January 2019 reducing this 
risk.
Since one large employer remains in 
this category the risk has not 
changed.

F9 New Risk: Financial loss 
experienced during the 
transitioning of Assets to the new 
Brunel Portfolio's.

New Period Comments: £510m has 
been transitioned to the BPP passive 
portfolio's and a full reconciliation has 
confirmed that all assets transitioned 
as expected.

A/R1 Significant additional costs 
resulting from changes to national 
pension requirements and/or 
HMRC rules e.g. changes arising 
from public sector pensions reform, 
and/or more complex regulations 
requiring increased administration 
resources.

New Period Comments: In order to 
effectively deal with the increased 
workload emanating from the new 
2016 CARE scheme, additional 
pensions officers were recruited to in 
the Pension Administration Team 
during 2016. A further four staff 
members have now been recruited in 
2018 to bring the staffing within the 
Pension Administration team up to 
the agreed full establishment funded 
by the budget. 

G9 Transition from the current 
custodian to State Street Bank 
under the Brunel Pension 
Partnership resulting in failings 
during the transition and/or 
inadequate performance reports 
post transition and/or negative 
impacts on the final accounts of the 
Pension Fund due to failings in the 
accounting reports received from 
State Street Bank

New Period Comments: No major 
problems were encountered during 
the transition and assets transferred 
were reconciled back to the detailed 
records held by each manager. 
Satisfactory performance reports now 
being provided by State Street, the 
key information from which will be 
included in more detailed reports 
being produced by the Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 

Recommendation

That the Board note the Risk Register and consider whether there are any 
changes that it wishes to recommend to the Pension Committee.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 8



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER UPDATED IN SEPTEMBER 2018 FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PENSION BOARD IN OCTOBER 2018

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

F1
Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the 
anticipated returns underpinning valuation of 
liabilities over the long-term

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Only anticipate long-term return on a 
relatively prudent basis to reduce risk of 
under-performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist 
advice, in a suitably diversified manner 
across asset classes, geographies, 
managers, etc.
Analyse progress at three yearly 
valuations for all employers.  
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities 
between valuations at whole Fund level.   
Actuarial Review on a like for like basis 
has confirmed a strong deficit recovery 
plan.

2 4 8 ► Financial

Due to increased uncertainty regarding 
BREXIT and other political risks and 
possible negative long term implications, 
this risk will be monitored to determine 
whether the  likelihood of this risk 
materialising needs to be increased. 
Performance over the last 1 year and 3 
year period exceed the anticipated returns 
used as part of the 2016 valuation.

02/08/2018

To monitor the long term movements on the 
fund and the investment returns being 

achieved by each asset class to consider 
whether any changes are required

Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 
monitoring

F2 Inappropriate long-term investment strategy. The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow 
with actuarial estimates of future cash flow 
position.                               Overall 
investment strategy options including 
diversification considered as an integral 
part of the funding strategy.  Use of asset 
liability modelling.   Actuarial Review on a 
like for like basis has confirmed a strong 
deficit recovery plan.

2 4 8 ► Financial

Phased movement to new allocation is 
being undertaken in the context of reducing 

exposure to equities whilst maintaining 
adequate returns and minimising new 

transition costs before the transition into the 
Brunel Pension Partnership. A slightly 

amended asset allocation to the various 
investment portfolio's available under the 

BPP was agreed by the Pension 
Committee at it'sFebruary 18 meeting.

02/08/2018
Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Regular monitoring 
of the phased 

introduction of the 
new Strategic 

Asset allocation in 
the context of 

movement into the 
Brunel Pension 

Partnership.  

F3 Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds, 
leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level 
allows for the probability of this within a 
longer term context.  
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
Some investment in bonds helps to 
mitigate this risk.   Actuarial Review on a 
like for like basis has confirmed a strong 
deficit recovery plan.

3 3 9 ▲ Financial

Falling Govt Bond yields is reducing the 
discount rate (the level of expected 
investment returns) which increases the 
value placed on past service liabilities.

02/08/2018

F4 Increasing Pension Fund deficit The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation 
and regular update reports.
Regular consideration by Pension 
Committee on manager performance 
relative to funding assumptions, funding 
position and funding strategy.  Actuarial 
Review on a like for like basis has 
confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

3 3 9 ► Financial

Funding deficit reduced at 2016 Fund 
Valuation and performance over the last 1 
year and 3 year period exceed the 
anticipated returns used as part of the 2016 
valuation.

02/08/2018

F5 Active investment manager under-performance 
relative to benchmark.

Maximising investment returns to help 
the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses 
market performance and active managers 
relative to their index benchmark.  
Diversification of investments across asset 
classes and across different fund 
managers

2 3 6 ► Financial

Due to increased uncertainty regarding 
Brexit and other political risks and possible 
negative long term implications, this risk will 
be monitored to determine whether the  
likelihood of this risk materialising needs to 
be increased. Performance in the new BPP 
portfolio's will be monitored against agreed 
performance targets and will be reported 
back to the Committee.

02/08/2018

Transition of one active manager to passive 
management. Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review taking place. Monitoring of Fund 

investment performance

Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 
monitoring

F6 Pay and price inflation significantly more than 
anticipated.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 2 8

The focus of the actuarial valuation 
process is on real returns on assets, net of 
price and pay increases. 
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives 
early warning. 
Some investment in index-linked bonds 
also helps to mitigate this risk.  
Employers pay for their own salary awards 
and should be mindful of the geared effect 
on pension liabilities of any bias in 
pensionable pay rises towards longer-
serving employees.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

1e

P
age 9



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

F7 Unexpected increase in employer’s contribution rate To stabilise changes in employer 
contribution rates over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has 
been agreed for eligible employers as part 
of the funding strategy.  Other measures 
are also in place to limit sudden increases 
in contributions.
Obtain information on financial strength of 
individual employers. Discuss with 
employers their ability to absorb rises in 
their level of contribution.
Where appropriate mitigate impact through 
deficit spreading and phasing in of 
contribution rises, with appropriate security 
from employers and further analysis by the 
Fund’s actuary.

2 3 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F8 Orphaned employers give rise to added costs for the 
Fund

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 
security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of 
this happening in the future. At risk 
employers are identified and are engaged 
in discussions over remedial actions in 
advance of retirement of all active 
members. 
If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the 
added cost spread pro-rata among all 
employers 

2 3 6 ► Financial
Two high risk employers without guarantors 
will be laeving the fund between March 
2018 and January 2019 reducing this risk.

02/08/2018

F9 Financial loss experienced during the transitioning of 
Assets to the new Brunel Portfolio's

Maximising investment returns to help 
the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 5 15

Detailed reconciliation of assets 
transferred undertaken by the Finance and 
Investments Manager. Detailed report 
from transition experts commissioned by 
the Brunel PP will be produced following 
each transition to provide assurance to 
clients.

2 4 8 New Financial

£510m has been transitioned to the BPP 
passive portfolio's and a full reconciliation 
has confirmed that all assets transitioned 
as expected.

02/08/2018 On-going monitoring following each 
transition

F/D1 Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to 
Fund.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 2 10

Set mortality assumptions with some 
allowance for future increases in life 
expectancy.
The Fund Actuary has direct access to the 
experience of over 50 LGPS funds which 
allows early identification of changes in life 
expectancy that might in turn affect the 
assumptions underpinning the valuation.
The Fund also sets life expectancy 
assumptions using ClubVita, which is a 
specialised longevity company and 
provides life expectancy assumptions 
based on the profile of the Fund’s own 
membership.
Administering Authority encourage any 
employers concerned at costs to promote 
later retirement culture.  Each 1 year rise 
in the average age at retirement would 
save roughly 5% of pension costs.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F/D2

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively 
contributing employees declines relative to retired 
employees leading to the possibility of there not 
being sufficient liquid funds available to pay liabilities 
as they fall due.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Continue to monitor at each valuation, 
seeking monetary amounts rather than % 
of pay. Between valuations regularly 
monitor level of active members on both a 
total Fund basis and by individual 
employer. Regularly monitor how cash 
flow positive the Fund is. Regularly review 
investment strategy.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The Fund commissioned Hymans 
Robertson to undertake cash flow modelling 
based on the following three scenarios:
Scenario 1 – cash flows projections based 
on 2016 valuation membership data, 
Scenario 2 – cash flows projections based 
on 2016 valuation membership data, with a 
20% reduction in actives, Scenario 3  - with 
a 40% reduction in active members. This 
modelling indicated that the fund will remain 
cashflow positive until 2033 under 
scenario1, to 2026 under scenario 2 and 
would immediately become casflow 
negative under scenario 3. Given that 
active membership in the Gloucestershire 
scheme is still increasing slightly it is felt 
that scenario 1 is the most likely outcome 
for the fund.

02/08/2018

P
age 10



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

F/D3 A company admitted to the Fund as an admission 
body may become financially unviable

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

A transferee admission body will always 
have a funding guarantee from the 
transferring scheme employer. A 
community admission body will only be 
admitted to the Fund if they have a funding 
guarantee from a scheme employer with 
tax raising powers. A surety bond to cover 
the cost of paying pensions early if the 
company goes into liquidation is also 
generally required by the scheme 
employer to cover the potential risk of the 
admitted body becoming insolvent and the 
value of this surety or bond is reviewed 
regularly to ensure it provides adequate 
cover for the financial risks involved

3 3 9 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F/D4 Deteriorating patterns of early retirements
To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Employers are charged the extra cost of 
non ill-health retirements following each 
individual decision.
Employer ill health retirement experience 
is monitored, and insurance is an option.

2 3 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F/D5 Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit 
recovery payments

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Require employers to pay sums due for 
deficit recovery contributions as a fixed 
monetary amount rather than being 
expressed as a % of pay.

2 3 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F/D6 Ill-health retirements significantly more than 
anticipated

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health 
experience on an ongoing basis. The 
employer may be charged additional 
contributions if this exceeds the ill-health 
assumption built in. Ill health insurance is 
available to be purchased by individual 
employers

2 3 6 ► Financial 02/08/2018

F/D7

Adverse effect on the Fund’s investment strategy 
and employer contributions if large numbers of 
active members are outsourced on a “closed” (to 
new entrants) basis

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the 
likely impact this will have on Fund 
investment out performance assumptions 
and employer contributions. Monitor levels 
of outsourcings on a “closed” basis and 
advise employers of implications so these 
are taken into account when they consider 
the business case for an outsourcing. 
Regularly review investment strategy and 
strategic asset allocation.

2 3 6 ► Financial
No significant impact to date, but the risk 
will continue to be monitored on a regular 
basis.

02/08/2018

F/D8
Transfers out of the Fund into DC schemes due to 
introduction of "Freedom & Choice" resulting in a 
change in funding level

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on 
the proportion of the Fund's active and 
deferred members aged 55 or over and 
the maximum exposure of the Fund to 
these transfers, split between active and 
deferred members. Considered impact on 
funding level given different possible levels 
of take up from active and deferred 
members.

2 2 4 ► Financial 26/09/2018

A/R1

Significant additional costs resulting from changes to 
national pension requirements and/or HMRC rules 
e.g. changes arising from public sector pensions 
reform, and/or more complex regulations requiring 
increased administration resources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

The Administering Authority considers all 
consultation papers issued by the 
Government and comments where 
appropriate. Considered different % take 
up scenarios for active and deferred 
members
The results of the most recent reforms 
have been built into the 2013 valuation.  
Any changes to member contribution rates 
or benefit levels will be carefully 
communicated with members to minimise 
possible opt-outs or adverse actions. 

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

In order to effectively deal with the 
increased workload emanating from the 
new 2016 CARE scheme, additional 
pensions officers were recuited to in the 
Pension Administration Team during 2016. 
A further four staff members have now 
been recuited in 2018 to bring the staffing 
within the Pension Administration team up 
to the agreed full establishment funded by 
the budget.

26/09/2018

A/R2 Failure to collect and account for contributions from 
employers and employees on time

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Regular monthly monitoring and 
reconciliation of Fund contributions 
received, including a detailed analysis of 
individual employer contributions and 
employee contributions by pay banding. 
Robust debt management processes are 
in place  to recover any late payments

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory 26/09/2018

P
age 11



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

A/R3 Loss of funds through fraud or misappropriation

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Procedures and processes are in place 
and applied in relation to eg: checking for 
"ghost" scheme members;  multiple levels 
of authorisation for claims and fund 
payments plus secondary checking of 
lump sum payments. Procedures are 
documented and staff are trained and 
managed in carrying these out. The Fund's 
internal auditors carry out regular reviews.

2 3 6 ► Fraud

The funds internal auditors regularly review 
the adequacy of controls within the 
Pensions Section. These reviews make use 
of experienced Counter Fraud staff who are 
available to the internal auditors.

26/09/2018

A/R4

Does the fund have sufficient resources to provide 
sufficient input to the development of the Brunel 
Pension Partnership in the context of the importance 
of ensuring that the partnership operates in an 
efficient and effective manner.

To ensure the fund is proactive in the 
development of the proposals and the 
robust control environment required for 
the collective management of assets, 
to avoid a detrimental impact on the 
fund. 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Additional staffing resources may be 
required to facilitate dedicated staffing 
resources to take forward the pooling 
proposal. This may require additional 
contributions from participating funds.

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

Now that the partnership has developed to 
the establishment of the new company, with 
senior appointments being made, limited 
senior officer resources can now be more 
directed at the important client side roles, 
including looking at the adequacy of control 
systems.

26/09/2018

A/R5

Failure to undertake a full reconciliation of 
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions records held on the 
Gloucestershire LGPS Altair system with those held 
by HMRC could result in additional financial costs to 
the Gloucestershire Fund.

Additional financial costs to the Fund Head of Pension 
Fund 5 3 15

A detailed reconciliation procedure has 
commenced and a large number of 
discrepancies have been identified where 
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund is not 
liable for GMP payments held on HMRC 
records.

3 3 9 Governance
Detailed reconciliation process is in place 
and potential iabilities have already been 
significantly reduced.

26/09/2018

G1

Administering Authority unaware of structural 
changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. large 
fall in employee members, large number of 
retirements) or not advised of an employer closing 
to new entrants

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority has a close 
relationship with employing bodies and 
communicates required standards e.g. for 
submission of data. 
The Actuary may revise the rates and 
Adjustments certificate to increase an 
employer’s contributions (under Regulation 
38) between triennial valuations
Deficit contributions may be expressed as

2 3 6 ► Governance 26/09/2018

G2 Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or is 
not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in some way

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority maintains 
close contact with its specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings 
involving Elected Members, and recorded 
appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional 
requirements such as peer review

2 3 6 ► Governance 26/09/2018

G3
Administering Authority failing to commission the 
Fund Actuary to carry out a termination valuation for 
a departing Admission Body.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority requires 
employers with Best Value contractors  ( 
Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform it 
of forthcoming changes. The administering 
authority also monitors contract periods of 
Transferee Admission Bodies and 
regularly monitors levels of active 
employees across all employers but 
particularly for Community Admission 
Bodies. Where their active membership 
materially decreases further steps are 
taken.

2 3 6 ► Governance 26/09/2018

P
age 12



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

G4 An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient 
funding or adequacy of a bond.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority believes that it 
would normally be too late to address the 
position if it was left to the time of 
departure.
The risk is mitigated by:
Seeking a funding guarantee from another 
scheme employer.
Alerting the prospective employer to its 
obligations and encouraging it to take 
independent actuarial advice. 
Vetting prospective employers before 
admission.
Where permitted under the regulations 
requiring a bond to protect the Fund from 
various risks.
Requiring new Community Admission 
Bodies to have a scheme employer with 
tax raising powers as guarantor.
Reviewing bond or guarantor 
arrangements at regular intervals.
Monitoring funding levels more closely as 
approaching cessation and reviewing 
contributions well ahead of cessation if 
thought appropriate 

3 3 9 ► Governance 26/09/2018

G5 Failure to comply with the Myners’ Investment 
Principles

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Compliance as detailed in the Statement 
of Investment Principles is kept under 
regular review. 

2 3 6 ► Governance 26/09/2018

G6
Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge,skills and 
resources at officer and member level in relation to 
administering the LGPS

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Training needs assessments for the 
Administering Authority are carried out and 
an annual training plan produced. The 
Fund subscribes to the CIPFA Knowledge 
and Skills Framework for the LGPS and 
makes this information available to all 
members of the Pension Committee and 
relevant officers. Appropriately qualified 
external advisers and consultants are 
used as appropriate.

3 3 9 ▲ Governance

As reported to the last meetings of the 
Pension Board and Pension Committee, in 
order to effectively deal with the increased 
workload emanating from the new 2016 
CARE scheme, additional resopurces have 
now been invested in the Pension 
Administration Team. However, due to 
training needs of new appointees 
performance against administration targets 
will take time to improve.

26/09/2018

G7 Failure to internally hold personal data securely and 
keep pension records up-to-date and accurate

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Personal data and scanned documents 
relating to scheme members are 
maintained in an online system with logical 
access controls via individual password 
access for those that need to maintain and 
access this information. Procedures for 
maintaining pension records are 
documented and the process is monitored 
and managed within the Pensions 
Administration team. Procedures are 
regularly reviewed by the Fund's internal 
auditors. Physical access controls are also 
in operation within the Pension Fund 
office. 

1 4 4 ► Governance 26/09/2018

G8

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee 
or Pension Board, and/or the lack of adequate 
training, resulting in a negative impact on 
governance arrangements within the 
Gloucestershire LGPS.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 4 12

Training is provided on an on-going basis 
to Committee and Board Members both at 
formal meetings of the Committee/Board 
and at internal and external training 
sessions.

1 4 4 ► 26/09/2018

G9

Transition from the current custodian to State Street 
Bank under the Brunel Pension Partnership resulting 
in failings during the transition and/or inadequate 
performance reports post transition and/or negative 
impacts on the final accounts of the Pension Fund 
due to failings in the accounting reports received 
from State Street Bank

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 4 12

Detailed control procedures implemented 
during the transition with supoort from a 
transition manager working for the Brunel 
Pension Partnership

1 3 3 ▼

No major problems were encoutered during 
the transition and assets transferred were 
reconciled back to the detailed records held 
by each manager. Satisfactory performance 
reports now being provided by State Street, 
the key information from which will be 
included in more detailed reports being 
produced by the Brunel Pension 
Partnership. 

26/09/2018

P
age 13



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity Period Comments

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

G10

Failure to comply with the General Data Protection 
Regulation resulting in breaches which have to be 
reported to the Pension Regulator and the 
Information Commissioners Office resulting in 
compliants from scheme members and/or significant 
financial fines. 

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 4 20

Detailed guidance and support is being 
obtained from the GCC Information 
Management Team which will include the 
production of an action plan to detail and 
monitor actions required to ensure 
compliance within the Gloucestershire 
LGPS.

3 4 12 ►

Detailed guidance and support is being 
obtained from the GCC Information 
Management Team which will include the 
production of an action plan to detail and 
monitor actions required to ensure 
compliance within the Gloucestershire 
LGPS. 

26/09/2018

G11

Failure to protect the Pension Fund's key 
information and data as a result of exploited 
technological vulnerabilities facilitated through 
malicious attack, primarily from external sources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 4 20

Anti-malware and internet security 
software. Patch management policies and 
procedures. Compliance with PSN. 
Internal and External ICT security 
testing.Manging user privileges.

3 3 9 ► Governance 26/09/2018

P
age 14



1

Pension Board
17th October 2018

Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund

Business Plan 2018-19 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director
1. Introduction

This Business Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Department for 
Communities & Local Government (CLG) best practice guidance for the governance of 
Pension Funds. 

Under this guidance Business Plans can be split into two parts. 
Firstly, for the Fund as a whole, the identification of: key issues; major milestones; 
targets and their measurement; plus financial estimates for investment and 
administration. 

Secondly, for the Pension Committee, setting out expectations of its own performance, 
including attainment of standards as set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
& Accountancy’s (CIPFA’s) knowledge & skills framework, achievement of required 
training outcomes including specialist training on the Brunel Partnership, and for the 
achievement of administrative targets

2. Background

As at 31st March 2018, the Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
Fund had approximately 53,400 members consisting of 18,600 active, 19,400 deferred 
and 15,400 retired (pensioner/dependant) members. There are 273 employer bodies in 
the Fund and 196 of these have active contributing members. The value of investment 
assets under management at 31st March 2018 was £2.23 billion.

The Pension Committee is responsible for the proper administration of all aspects of the 
Fund and has been delegated this authority by the County Council, as Administering 
Authority of the Fund.

Key Issues to be considered by the Pension Committee

The Committee aims to ensure the maximising of investment returns over the long term 
within an acceptable level of risk, in the context of the Investment Strategy and the Fund’s 
Risk Register. This includes reviewing the Fund Managers’ quarterly performance reports 
and discussing their strategy and performance when the Fund Managers meet with the 
Committee and with officers of the fund, including the Independent Advisor. The 
Committee also have to ensure that, over the long term, there are sufficient assets readily 
available to meet all Fund liabilities. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



2

Another key issue to be considered by the Pension Committee is the Brunel Pension 
Partnership, which the Gloucestershire Fund has joined, and which became fully 
operational as an FCA regulated company from 1 April 2018 in accordance with 
Government requirements. During 2018/19 a significant proportion of the funds 
investments will be transferred to the Brunel Pension Partnership as each of the 
partnerships investment mandates become operational.

There are also a number of key policy and strategy documents which the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations require to be produced and these 
need to be kept under regular review. These can accessed on the County Council’s web 
site (www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments) and are listed below:

Funding Strategy Statement

This sets down the strategy for prudently meeting the Fund’s future pension liabilities over 
the longer term, including the maintenance, as far as possible, of stable levels of 
employer contributions. It also identifies key risks and controls facing the Fund and 
includes details of employer contribution rates following the Fund’s triennial valuation.

Investment Strategy Statement

The Investment Strategy Statement has been prepared in accordance with the LGPS - 
Management & Investment of Funds Regulations, which came into force from 1 
November 2016. These regulations introduced a prudential framework for investment 
decision making, and a Power of Direction for the Secretary of State to intervene in the 
investment function of an Administering Authority if deemed necessary, and also requires 
all funds to publish a new Investment Strategy Statement (ISS), which includes the 
Strategic Asset allocation by 1 April each year.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has also outlined new 
guidance on preparing and maintaining an Investment Strategy Statement which replaces 
the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP). 

In order to comply with the guidance, administering authorities must take proper advice as 
part of the formulation of the Investment Strategy Statement and new Investment 
Strategy. In meeting this requirement detailed advice was obtained from an Investment 
Consultant from Hymans Robertson and from the Independent Investment Advisor to the 
Fund. 

The Investment Strategy Statement and Strategic Asset Allocation which will be 
implemented in stages from 1 April 2017, was agreed by the Gloucestershire Pension 
Committee on 29th March 2017 and has been placed on the Gloucestershire LGPS 
website. This statement was reviewed during 2017/18 in the context of the investment 
portfolio’s available to the Funds within the Brunel Pension Partnership, with the target 
allocations for each portfolio being agreed by the Pension Committee at it’s meeting on 
9th February 2018. Investments against these new target allocations will commence 
during 2018/19.

Page 16

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments


3

Communications Strategy

This details how the Fund provides information and publicity about the Pension scheme to 
its existing members and their employers as well as methods of promoting the Pension 
scheme to prospective members and their employers. It also identifies the format, 
frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity. As agreed by the 
Pension Committee, the format and content of the Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Annual Pensioners Newsletter will be reviewed during 2018 in order that the 2018/19 
versions are published in a new format.

Governance Compliance Statement 

The LGPS Regulations require Administering Authorities to prepare a written statement 
setting out their compliance with best practice governance principles. These best practice 
principles are grouped within eight categories and are listed within the statement. The 
Fund’s compliance against each of these principles is also detailed, including evidence of 
compliance and, if appropriate, reasons if there is not full compliance.

Governance Policy Statement 

This document details the arrangements put in place by the Administering Authority for 
the administration of the Pension scheme. These include the terms of reference of the 
Pension Committee and the appropriate governance arrangements which will reflect the 
eight categories of best practice principles as outlined in the Governance Compliance 
Statement.

Targets & Major Milestones for the Pension Fund in 2018/19

The major targets and milestones for 2018/19 are detailed below.

Task Measure of Performance

Effectively transition assets of the Fund to Meeting transition timetable and 
the new managers appointed by the Brunel minimising transition costs.
Pension Partnership (BPP).

Continue to input into the governance Effective service delivery by the
arrangements within the BPP including BPP.
the Client Group and Oversight Board.

Ensure the collection of, and accounting for, Full collection and correct 
£100m+ of employer and employee accounting within final accounts
contributions from Fund employers.

Pension Fund Accounts completed by 25/05/18 Meet specified time scales
for publication by 30/5/18

Page 17



4

Action any DCLG requirements re the future Meet specified time scales
structure of the LGPS, including investments

Confirm content of a shorter 2018/19 Annual To be agreed by Committee in
Report, as agreed by Committee in 2017. September 2018

Accounts agreed by the Audit Committee No qualification of a/c’s by Auditor
on 27th July 2018

To administer pension benefits in accordance No material breaches that need
with the LGPS regulations, and the guidance to be reported to the Pension
set out by the Pension Regulator. Regulator.

Issue the Annual Benefit Statements to all Meet specified time scales
Fund Members by the end of August 2018 

In house training for Committee and Board Relevance of topics covered 

To continue with regional training events in Provision of training events 
relation to the Brunel Pension Partnership

Amended Annual Pension Fund Report printed Discussed at Annual Meeting  
by 31/10/18

Pension Fund Financial Estimates

The costs of operating the Gloucestershire Pension Fund are borne by the Fund (and not 
by the County Council). These estimated costs for 2018/19 are shown overleaf and are 
split between “Investments, Accounting &Financial Management” and “Scheme 
Administration”. For comparison purposes the previous year’s estimates are also shown. 

“Investments, Accounting &Financial Management” includes the cost of Fund Managers, 
the Brunel Pension Partnership costs and other external costs, as well as the internal 
costs of producing and maintaining the Fund’s accounting records and statements. 

“Scheme Administration” includes the internal costs of dealing with the Fund’s members 
and employers in relation to current/future benefits and compliance with scheme 
regulations, as well as external costs such as IT and actuarial costs in supporting Fund 
administration and the Triennial Valuation.

Page 18



5

ESTIMATES 2017/18
        
2018/19

£’000  £’000   £’000      £’000

Investments, Accounting & 
Financial Management
Staff costs 346 358
Other internal costs 56 63
External Fund Manager fees 6,500 6,500
Other external costs 567 895
Sub Total of Investments Costs 7,469 7,816

Scheme Administration including 
Member Records & Benefits
Staff costs 656 674
Other internal costs 271 297
External costs 460 481
Sub Total of Administration Costs 1,387 1,452

Total 8,856 9,268

The main budget change between 2017/18 and 2018/19 is a £328,000 increase in other 
external costs in relation to Gloucestershire’s anticipated share of company costs under 
the Brunel Pension partnership (BPP), taking the estimated charge to £614,000 in 
2018/19. External fund manager fees are forecast to remain the same for 2018/19 with 
the expectation that budget reductions will arise following BPP becoming fully operational 
with the selected managers for the new, pooled portfolios. 

Training for the Pension Committee and supporting officers

CIPFA have produced guidance on the knowledge and skills committee members and 
fund officers need to have when involved in the work of the Pension Fund committee. 

The CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework identifies those elements pension fund 
committee members should have in order to collectively fulfil their effective decision 
making role.

The Committee recognises the importance of training for its members and for its officers, 
who advise and support the Committee. The Committee have undertaken to attain the 
standards laid down in CIPFA’s knowledge and skills framework

The Committee’s expectations on training and other areas of performance are detailed 
below.

Page 19



6

To complete a bi-annual assessment on training needs for all members of the Pension 
Committee based on the knowledge and skills framework. To use the results of the 
assessment to identify areas within the framework where knowledge and skill levels need 
to be improved. 

In addition, the Committee have agreed individuals should carry out a minimum of 1 days 
training each year via any combination of the following:  attendance on regional briefings 
on the Brunel Pension Partnership, attendance on internal training events and external 
courses/conferences/seminars; reading briefing notes/policy documents; reading and 
discussing reports at Pension Committee. 

Based on the training needs assessment carried out at the end of 2017/18, internal 
training is scheduled to be provided to Pension Committee and Board Members during 
2018/19 as follows:

Month Topic

May 2018 Responsible Investment
September 2018 Investment Risks and Rewards
November 2018 The triennial fund valuation process
November 2018 Brunel Pension Partnership
February 2019 To be determined

Also, Committee members are expected to attend all 3 days of the LGA Pensions 
Fundamentals course, which covers benefits, fund administration and investments. The 
course is designed to help ensure effective decision making. Attendance on this course 
should take place as soon as possible, but must be within the first three years of joining 
the Committee, and for officers, within the first year of supporting the Committee.

Administrative Targets for the Committee 

Members to attend at least 60% of Pension Committee meetings each year.

Committee minutes to be issued within two months of a meeting 

Committee papers to be sent out 5 working days before a meeting.

To regularly review and agree changes to strategy/policy documents. All strategy/policy 
documents will be considered by Committee at least every three years, even if no 
changes are recommended. 

Page 20



7

Administrative Targets for the Pension Fund

Service Standards – Processing tasks within internal 
targets

Target Achievement %

Issue estimates to employees within15 days 90%

Process retirements and lump sums within15 days 90%

Pay refunds within 15 days 90%

Pay death grants within 8 days 90%

Issue Annual Benefits Statements within the statutory 
deadline

100%

Pay Transfers Out” within15 days 90%

Pension Fund Accounts produced by statutory deadline 30/5/2018

Annual report produced by statutory deadline 31/10/2018

The Pension Committee and Pension Board receive regular reports on the actual 
achievement against these performance targets.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury – Head of Pension Fund (01452328920)

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 

Audit Findings
Year ending 31 March 2018

Gloucestershire Pension Fund

18 July 2018

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 5



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Headlines 3

2. Financial statements 4

3. Independence and ethics 13

Appendices

A. Action plan

B. Follow up of prior year recommendations

C. Audit adjustments

D. Fees

E. Audit Opinion

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 

our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 

control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements 

in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our 

prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report 

was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 

is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Peter Barber

Engagement Lead

T:  01173057897

E: Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Katie Whybray

Audit Manager

T: 01173057601

E: Katie.V.Whybray@uk.gt.com

James Stevenson

Audit In-charge

T: 01173057624

E: James.R.Stevenson@uk.gt.com

P
age 24



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 3

Headlines
Introduction

This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of Gloucestershire Pension Fund (‘the Pension Fund’) and the preparation of the Pension Fund's financial

statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 for those charged with governance.

Financial

Statements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the

Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

• the Pension Fund's financial statements give a true and fair 

view of the financial position of the Pension Fund and its income 

and expenditure for the year, and have been properly prepared 

in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting;

We commenced our post-statements onsite visit in early June and as at 18 July 2018 our 

audit is substantially complete. Our findings are summarised on pages 4 to 12.

We did not identify any errors or other areas requiring amendment in the draft financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 that have resulted in a adjustment to the 

fund account or net asset statement. We have recommended a small number of 

adjustments to improve the presentation of the financial statements.

The draft financial statements were presented for audit in accordance with the earlier 

timetable of the end of May 2018. The accounts were supported by good quality working 

papers and we received prompt responses to our queries. 

Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix B. We have also raised recommendations for 

management as a result of our audit work in Appendix . Our follow up of 

recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in Appendix D.

Subject to a small number of outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing 

an unqualified audit opinion following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 

27 July 2018, as detailed in Appendix E. 

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

P
age 25



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 4

Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are 

significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance (in the case of 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund, the Audit and Governance Committee) to oversee the 

financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and 

the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents will be discussed with the Audit and 

Governance Committee. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion 

on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of 

those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve 

management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation 

of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Pension Fund's 

business and is risk based, and in particular included:

• an evaluation of the Pension Fund's internal controls environment, including its IT 

systems and controls

• controls testing of the contributions and benefits processes

• substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including 

the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to 

outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion 

following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 27 July 2018, as detailed in 

Appendix E. These outstanding items include:

- receipt of the management representation letter 

- obtaining and reviewing the annual report

- reviewing the valuation of the investment in the Brunel Company and the accounting 

treatment of this.

Financial Statements 

Our assessment of the value of materiality has been adjusted to reflect the change in 

the value of the pension funds net assets in the draft financial statements. We detail in 

the table below our assessment of materiality for Gloucestershire Pension Fund.

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements 

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to 

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and 

applicable law. 
Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered 

Materiality for the financial statements 22,394,000 This equates to 1% of total net assets for the 2017/18 financial year

Performance materiality 16,796,000 This equates to 75% of materiality

Trivial matters 1,119,700 ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in 

aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

Materiality for specific transactions, balances or 

disclosures

500,000

20,000

A lower materiality of £500,000 for management expenses due to increasing public interest in their activities and 

cost cutting efficiency measures suggesting increased scrutiny of fees being paid to fund managers. Lower 

materiality of £20,000 for related party transactions and senior officer remuneration disclosures.

P
age 26



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 5

Significant audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA 240 (UK) there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. This presumption can be 

rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk 

of material misstatement due to fraud relating to 

revenue recognition.

Auditor commentary

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Pension Fund, we 

have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Gloucestershire Pension Fund, mean that all 

forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

• A number of admitted bodies made early repayments in 2017/18 which we undertook additional procedures on to 

ensure the income was supported by evidence and accounted for correctly

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of revenue recognition.

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride 

of controls is present in all entities. 

We identified management override of controls as a 

risk requiring special audit consideration.

Auditor commentary

• We addressed the significant risk of management override of controls by:

• review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

• testing of journal entries

• review of unusual significant transactions

• review of significant related party transactions outside the normal course of business.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.

Financial Statements 

P
age 27



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 6

Significant audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

The valuation of Level 3 investments is incorrect

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to 

significant non-routine transactions and judgemental 

matters.  Level 3 investments by their very nature 

require a significant degree of judgement to reach an 

appropriate valuation at year end.

We identified the valuation of level 3 investments as a 

risk requiring special audit consideration.

Auditor commentary

In order to address the significant risk of valuation of level 3 investments being incorrect we performed the following;

• gained an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing level 3 investments

• reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over the year 

end valuations provided for  these types of investments

• considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

• reviewed the qualifications of the fund managers used to value Level 3 investments at year end and gain an 

understanding of how the valuation of these investments has been reached

• for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, (where available) 

at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconciled 

those values to the values at 31 March 2018 with reference to movements in the intervening period.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of the valuation of these investments. However we did identify 

three investments categorised as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy disclosure note which should have been 

categorised as level 2 investments. The movement between level 3 to level 2 has been adjusted by management in the 

final version of the financial statements.

Financial Statements

P
age 28



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Contributions

Contributions from employers and employees’ represents a 

significant percentage of the Fund’s revenue. 

We therefore identified occurrence and accuracy of 

contributions as a risk requiring particular audit attention

Auditor commentary

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

• evaluated the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of contributions for appropriateness

• gained an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for contribution income and evaluated the

design of the associated controls

• performed testing based on a sampling approach over a selection of controls over contributions income

• tested a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance over their accuracy and occurrence

• rationalised contributions received with reference to changes in member body payrolls and the number of

contributing pensioners to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.

We did not identify any significant issues to bring to your attention.

Pension Benefits Payable

Pension benefits payable represents a significant percentage 

of the Fund’s expenditure.

We identified completeness of pension benefits payable as a 

risk requiring particular audit attention: 

Auditor commentary

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

• evaluated the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of pension benefits expenditure for appropriateness

• gained an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for pension benefits expenditure and evaluated

the design of the associated controls

• performed testing based on a sampling approach over a selection of controls over benefit payments

• tested a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to member files

• rationalised pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and increases applied in year to

ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.

We did not identify any significant issues to bring to your attention.

Financial Statements

P
age 29



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 8

Reasonably possible audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

The valuation of Level 2 investments is incorrect

While level 2 investments do not carry the same level of 

inherent risks associated with level 3 investments, there is 

still an element of judgement involved in their valuation as 

their very nature is such that they cannot be valued directly.

We identified valuation of level 2 investments as a risk 

requiring particular audit attention.

Auditor commentary

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

 gained an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing Level 2 investments and evaluated the design of 

the associated controls

 evaluated the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over 

the year end valuations provided for these types of investments

 reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by the pension fund’s/individual fund manager’s custodian 

and the Pension Scheme's own records and sought explanations for variances

 considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

 evaluated the qualifications of the fund managers to value the level 2 investments at year end and gained an 

understanding of how the valuation of these investment has been reached

 for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining independent information from 

custodian/manager on units and unit prices

 for direct property investments agree values in total to valuer's report and undertake steps to gain reliance on 

the valuer as an expert.

We did not identify any significant issues to bring to your attention.

Financial Statements

P
age 30



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 9

Other issues and matters discussed with management

Financial Statements

This section provides commentary on issues and matters which were identified during the course of the audit and discussed with management. 

Issue Commentary Auditor view

Going concern Management set out their consideration of the appropriateness of the 

adoption of going concern assumption in their response to our ISA240 

letter in April 2018. In this report the S151 officer confirmed her view that 

the Pension Fund is a going concern and subsequently confirmed to us 

that  there are no material uncertainties to this view that would require 

disclosure.

Officers have a reasonable expectation that the Fund will continue for the 

foreseeable future. For this reason, the Fund continue to adopt the going 

concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

We have reviewed management's assessment and are 

satisfied with the judgement that the going concern basis 

is appropriate for the 2017/18 financial statements.

Brunel Pension Partnership 

Limited (BPP)

The Pension Fund, have invested £840,000 in BPP. The Pension Fund is 

therefore one of ten joint shareholders in the Company. 

The Fund in discussions with Brunel, the other Brunel funds and 

discussions with Brunel’s Auditor, have recognised the amount paid as an 

investment asset of the Pension Fund.

We are still reviewing this treatment to ensure that there is 

consistency across all Brunel partners in terms of 

valuations and accounting treatment. 

Early payment
A number of admitted bodies made early up-front pension payments in 

2017/18 to reduce the future pension liabilities. The income for these 

payments has been recognised in full in the pension funds accounts in 

2017/18.

We are satisfied that the early up front payments have 

been accounted for appropriately within the pension fund’s 

accounts.

P
age 31



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 10

Accounting policies

Financial Statements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Revenue recognition  Income activity is accounted for in the year 

in which it takes place, not simply when the 

cash is received. This applies to 

contribution income, investment income 

and other income recoveries from services 

provided. 

• The accounting policies are considered to be reasonable and in 

line with the CIPFA Code. 

Green

Judgements and estimates  Key estimates and judgements include:

• Valuation of level 3 investments

• The assumptions within the IAS26 

calculation of the present value of 

future retirement benefits 

• The assumptions within the triennial 

valuation

We have no issues to report over the:

• Appropriateness of the accounting policies disclosed

• Adequacy of the disclosure of the accounting policy



Green

Other critical policies  We have reviewed the Council's policies 

against the requirements of the CIPFA 

Code and accounting standards.

The Pension Fund's accounting policies are appropriate and 

consistent with previous years. 

Green

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially be open to challenge by regulators

 Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

 Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

P
age 32



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 11

Other communication requirements

Financial Statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud  We have not been made aware of any significant incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of 

our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to related 

parties

• We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 

identified any incidences from our audit work. 

Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Pension Fund.

Confirmation requests from 

third parties 

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation request to fund managers of the pension fund requesting 

confirmation of the value of their holdings at year end and further information, where required, to support the basis of the valuation of 

investments selected as part of our testing. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. All of these requests were 

returned with positive confirmation.

P
age 33



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 12

Other communication requirements

Financial Statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Commentary

Disclosures  Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

Significant difficulties  We have identified no significant difficulties whilst undertaking the 2017/18 audit. 

Matters on which we report by 

exception

 We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial statements included therein 

are consistent with the audited financial statements.

 Due to statutory deadlines the Pension Fund Annual Report is not required to be published until the 1st December 2018 and therefore 

this report has not yet been produced. We have therefore not given this separate opinion at this time and are unable to certify

completion of the audit of the administering authority until this work has been completed. 

P
age 34



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 13

Independence and ethics 
Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements 

However, we would like to draw members attention to the fact that Grant Thornton UK LLP are the appointed auditors for Brunel Pension Partnership Limited, a Company which 

Gloucestershire County Council, on behalf of Gloucestershire Pension Fund, holds 10% of the Share Capital. The Company was formed to hold and Invest the Investment assets of 10 

Local Government pension funds. We do not consider this appointment presents an Independence issue for us as your auditors, for transparency we do consider this a matter to bring to 

your attention.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Eth ical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 

person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 

requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix C.

Fees, non audit services and independence

Audit and Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Gloucestershire Pension Fund. The following audit related 

services were identified/ No non-audit services were identified.

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Audit of Brunel Pension 

Partnership Limited (BPP)

40,000 None We do not consider that the Audit of BPP is a threat to our independence as Gloucestershire Pension cannot 

exercise control over BPP.

The audit of BPP is carried out by a specialist team, authorised by the Financial Standards Authority.

The Fee of £40,000 is not significant compared to the audit fees of the ten participating pension funds.

Non-audit related

None

P
age 35



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 14

Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the following issues in the audit of Gloucestershire Pension Fund's 2016/17 financial statements, which resulted in a recommendations being reported in our 2016/17 Audit 

Findings report. This recommendation is still outstanding at this point.

Appendix A

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

x
Recording of investments in the ledger

A recommendation was made in the prior year to update 

investment values on the ledger to reflect the current values in 

order to ensure the financial statements agree to the pension 

fund’s accounting system.

• Management had collated the majority of the information necessary to input the 

relevant unrealised gains for the 2017/18 financial year, however due to an enforced 

change of custodian towards the end of 2017/18, required under the new LGPS 

pooling arrangements, the information was not fully available in order to ensure a 

robust audit trail that management felt was appropriate to be included within the final 

accounts before the final audit visit. For the management response please see slide 

17.

Assessment

 Action completed

X Not yet addressed

P
age 36



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 15

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Impact of adjusted misstatements

There are no adjusted misstatements. 

Impact of adjusted misstatements

There are no unadjusted misstatements.  

Disclosure Detail Adjusted?

Note 4

Note 28

Other

• An amount of £8.956 million was included within sales proceeds which should have been included 

within gains/losses on disposal.

.

• We identified two investments with a value totalling £3.641 million which were included within level 3 

investments and were deemed to be classified as level 2 investments.

• A small number of minor disclosure amendments were made to the statement of accounts.







Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

Appendix B

P
age 37



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 16

Fees

Proposed fee Final fee

Pension Fund Audit £23,799 £23,799

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £23,799 £23,799

Non Audit Fees

Appendix C

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Audit Fees

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

No non-audit or audited related services have been undertaken for the Pension Fund.

P
age 38



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 17

Action plan

We have identified one recommendation for the Pension Fund as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management 

and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2018/19 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified 

during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Controls

 High – Significant effect on control system

 Medium – Effect on control system

 Low – Best practice

Appendix D

Assessment Control issue Recommendations



Medium

We identified that the fund’s investment values are recorded 

within the ledger at book cost and that unrealised gains on 

investments are not input into the ledger. This means that the 

trial balance does not fully reflect the ledger as the net assets 
statement disclosures investments at their fair value

In order to ensure the financial statements are in accordance with the Pension Fund’s 

main accounting system, we recommend that investments on the ledger are updated to 

reflect the current values. Ideally these should be done each time management 

accounts are produced. Ideally these should be done each time management accounts 

are produced. 

Management response

Management confirm that, now that the new custodian arrangements have been 

effectively implemented, during 2018/19 appropriate action will be taken to ensure that 

unrealised gains on investments are included within the final accounts for the 2018/19 

and future financial years.

P
age 39



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 18

Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Gloucestershire Pension Fund on the pension fund 

financial statements

Opinion 

We have audited the pension fund financial statements of Gloucestershire Pension Fund (the ‘Authority’) for 

the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and notes to the 

pension fund financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2017/18.

In our opinion the pension fund financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year ended 31 March 

2018 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s assets and liabilities

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; and 

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

pension fund of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the pension fund financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has 

been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 

accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, 

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us 

to report to you where:

the Strategic Finance Director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

pension fund financial statements is not appropriate; or

the Strategic Finance Director has not disclosed in the pension fund financial statements any identified 

material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the 

going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the pension 

fund financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Strategic Finance Director is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report, the Annual Governance 

Statement and the Annual Report, other than the pension fund financial statements, our auditor’s report 

thereon and our auditor’s report on the Authority’s financial statements. Our opinion on the pension fund 

financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the pension fund financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

pension fund financial statements or our knowledge of the pension fund of the Authority obtained in the 

course of our work or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the pension fund financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice  published by the National Audit Office on 

behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the pension fund financial 

statements the other information published together with the pension fund financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report, the Annual Governance Statement and the Annual Report for 

the financial year for which the pension fund financial statements are prepared is consistent with the pension 

fund financial statements.

Appendix E

P
age 40



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 19

Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if:

we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014  in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014  in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Strategic Finance Director and Those Charged with 

Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make arrangements 

for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the 

responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Strategic Finance 

Director. The Strategic Finance Director is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, 

which includes the pension fund financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, which 

give a true and fair view , and for such internal control as the Strategic Finance Director determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of pension fund financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the pension fund financial statements, the Strategic Finance Director is responsible for 

assessing the pension fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the pension fund lacks funding for 

its continued existence or when policy decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the 

pension fund.

The Audit and Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the pension fund financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

pension fund financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the pension fund financial statements is located 

on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description 

forms part of our auditor’s report.

Signature – To be added

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

2 Glass Wharf

Bristol

BS2 0EL

Date – To be added 

Appendix E

P
age 41

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2017/18 

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 42



1

Pension Board
16h October 2018

Pension Administration Report 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Pension Administration Performance in 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19

Table 1 – Summary Performance

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets

Target 
Achievement 
%

2016/17 full 
year – 
Actual %

2017/18 full 
year – 
Actual %

2018/19 
April to 
September 
– Actual %

Estimates to employees 
(15 days)

90% 66% 85% 94%

Retirements and lump 
sums (15 days)

90% 35% 75% 72%

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 70% 96% 98%
Death Grants Paid (8 
days)

90% 54% 74% 83%

2015/16 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued within 
the statutory deadline

100% 100% see 
note 1

100% see 
note 1

100% see 
note 1

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days)

90% 77% 92% 98%

Table 2 - 2018/19 Performance (April to August)

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets

Target 
Achievement 
%

No. 
Processed

No. 
processed 
on time

Actual % 
achievement

Average 
days 
taken

Estimates to employees 
(15 days)

90% 264 248 94% 9

Retirements and lump 
sums (15 days)

90% 375 270 72% 13

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 267 261 98% 7
Death Grants Paid (8 
days)

90% 47 39 83% 7

2017/18 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued 
within the statutory 
deadline

100% 32,817 see 
note 1

32,817 see 
note 1

100% see 
note 1

N/A

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days)

90% 65 64 98 5

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



2

Table 3- 2017/18 Performance (full year) 

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets

Target 
Achievement 
%

No. 
Processed

No. 
processed 
on time

Actual % 
achievement

Average 
days 
taken

Estimates to employees 
(15 days)

90% 571 485 85% 10

Retirements and lump 
sums (15 days)

90% 768 575 75% 11

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 448 429 96% 6
Death Grants Paid (8 
days)

90% 61 45 74% 7

2016/17 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued 
within the statutory 
deadline

100% 31,190 see 
note 1

31,190 see 
note 1

100% see 
note 1

N/A

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days)

90% 132 122 92% 7

Table 4 - 2016/17 Performance (full year)

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets

Target 
Achievement 
%

No. 
Processed

No. 
processed 
on time

Actual % 
achievement

Average 
days 
taken

Estimates to employees 
(15 days)

90% 669 441 66% 21

Retirements and lump 
sums (15 days)

90% 807 285 35% 17

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 290 203 70% 15
Death Grants Paid (8 
days)

90% 59 32 54% 10

2015/16 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued 
within the statutory 
deadline

100% 30758 see 
note 1

30758 see 
note 1

100% N/A

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days)

90% 96 74 77% 12

Note 1

Regarding Annual Benefits Statements, all of the year end returns from all employers 

were received by the Administration Team within the statutory deadline. All returns 

were matched to the pensioner records held within the Administration team, and 

where a definitive match was made, 100% of the Annual Benefit Statements were 

distributed to active and deferred members by the statutory deadline.

Page 44



Gloucestershire County Council
Pension Fund

Performance Report to June 30, 2018

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



Market Overview
Market Commentary 1

Client Information
Market Value by Manager 2

Total Client
Performance Target 3
Performance Summary 4-5
Ex Post Risk 7-8

Manager Attribution 6
Disclaimer Page 9

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Table of Contents

State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 46



Market Commentary

 

 

 

Gloucestershire 
 
The second quarter of 2018 proved more rewarding for equity investors than the preceding three months. Overall, the MSCI AC World Index returned 7.0% 
for a GBP investor. Developed country stock markets led the global index higher; Italy was a clear exception as investors digested a surprise coalition 
government agreement – Italian equities and bonds both slipped. Emerging markets lost over 2% in GBP terms as a stronger US dollar and trade war 
rhetoric hit assets. Among commodities, oil was a standout performer as the renewal of US sanctions on Iran helped boost Brent crude prices by 13%.   
 

At home, the MSCI UK Index rose 9.4% in Q2, its best quarterly outcome in five years. This was partly driven by shares of companies that derive significant 
USD revenues from international operations; the British pound fell 6% versus the dollar. Energy-related stocks were strong performers with more ‘defensive’ 
sectors such as telecoms underperforming. Brexit continues to cast a shadow as the UK government remains at odds with the EU, while Theresa May’s 
cabinet is also deeply divided. The Bank of England kept interest rates unchanged, deciding the time was not right in May to implement a rate hike that had 
been fully anticipated just one month earlier.   

 
In the US, the MSCI NA Index returned 10.1%; energy was the top-performing sector as oil prices climbed, while consumer discretionary and technology 
sectors also outperformed. Rising trade tensions weighed on sentiment towards industrials, while financials also underperformed as the declining gap 
between short and long-term rates raised some concerns about margins.  

 
European market returns were largely positive in the quarter, the MSCI Europe ex UK Index recorded a return of 3.8%. Germany and France had a strong 
quarter and Spain posted only a modest gain as the market pondered what the latest change in government may mean.   

 
In Japan the MSCI Index returned 3.3% and in the broader Asia-Pacific region, returns were mixed with an aggregate return of 2.5%. Australian and New 
Zealand markets were the best performing regions benefitting from flows out of Asian markets.   

 
In fixed income, developed country government bond markets outperformed those of emerging markets, although in the eurozone there was a clear 
preference for core over peripheral sovereigns; Italian bonds were notably out of favour.  In the UK Corporate Bonds returned -0.1% as measured by the 
BAML £ Non Gilt Index; the FTSE Gilts over 5 year Index return was flat and the FTSE Index Linked over 5 year Index returned -1.2%. 
 
The 3 month GBP LIBOR returned 0.1% over the quarter. 

 
GBP lost ground against other major currencies over the quarter, down 6.2% against the USD, 2.0% against the JPY and 0.8% against the EURO. 

 
 

Property had another positive quarter, returning 2.1%, bringing the one year return to 10.8%. 

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Market Overview

Page 1 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 47



Fund Structure By Mandate

Performance

Manager Mandate Target Benchmark Indices BMV '000s EMV '000s Difference Actual Weight

Aberdeen Standard UK Equity B/M +2% net FTSE All Share 2% Capped 393,804 425,270 31,466 18.33

Aberdeen Standard - GARS Global Absolute Return Benchmark 6M GBP LIBOR +5% 77,877 76,332 -1,545 3.29

Blackrock EM Emerging Markets Passive Benchmark MSCI Emerging Markets 142,866 139,856 -3,010 6.03

Blackrock Global Global Equities B/M +1-2% gross MSCI ACWI 600,996 635,992 34,996 27.41

Blackrock Aquila Life Global Equities Benchmark Composite* 294,827 311,142 16,315 13.41

WAMCO Global Fixed Interest B/M +1% net Composite** 308,536 305,840 -2,696 13.18

WAMCO GMS Global Multi Strategy FI Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +2% 184,098 177,231 -6,867 7.64

Hermes Property B/M +0.5% net IPD UK  PPF Bal PUT 131,618 134,752 3,134 5.81

CBREI - GMM Property B/M +0.5% net IPD All Bal Property Fund 54,631 56,221 1,590 2.42

Golub Private Debt Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +5% 10,693 11,361 668 0.49

Blue Bay Private Debt Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +5% 6,166 14,652 8,486 0.63

Yorkshire Fund Manager/TVP Venture Capital n/a n/a 5,350 5,589 239 0.24

Cash Cash n/a n/a 21,897 25,974 4,077 1.12

Blackrock Cash Cash n/a n/a 38 38 0 0

Gloucestershire CC 2,233,397 2,320,250 86,853 100.00

Blackrock Aquila Life - Global Equities Composite Benchmark* Weighting

MSCI World Index Net Total Return GBP Fund %

MSCI World Net TR 95% Hedged to GBP Fund %

WAMCO - Global Fixed Interest Composite Benchmark** Weighting

FTSE A Gilts Over 5 Years Index (Gross) 25%

ICE BoAML Sterling Non Gilts Index (Gross) 50%

FTSE A Index Linked Gilts Over 5 Years (Gross) 25%

Beginning Market Value as of Mar
31 2018

Quarterly Ending Market Value as
of Jun 30 2018 Difference Actual Weight

Blackrock Aquila Unhedged 106,887,957 115,827,576 8,938,175 4.99

Blackrock Aquila Hedged 187,938,672 195,314,391 7,370,846 8.42

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Market Value by Manager

Page 2 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 48



Fund Performance - Net

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Performance Target 

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Fund Performance - Net

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Performance Target 

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.)

Gloucestershire County Council 3.3 3.3 7.0 10.0 9.9 8.4 7.9

Gloucestershire Performance Target 4.3 4.3 7.3 11.0 10.2 8.7 8.4

Excess -1.0 -1.0 -0.3 -1.0 -0.3 -0.2 -0.5

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Client Overview compared with Performance Target

Page 3 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 49



Actual Performance v Target Performance
Ending

Market Value
(Million)

Weight
(%)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.) Inception Date

Aberdeen Standard Investments 425.3 18.3% 8.0 8.0 8.7 6.8 7.4 6.8 7.0 Mar-05

Aberdeen Standard Performance Target - - 9.2 9.2 10.6 11.1 10.7 9.7 9.8 Mar-05

Excess - - -1.2 -1.2 -1.9 -4.2 -3.3 -3.0 -2.8 -

Aberdeen Standard GARS 76.3 3.3% -2.2 -2.2 -2.3 -0.9 2.2 - 2.8 Nov-12

Aberdeen Standard GARS Performance Target - - 1.4 1.4 5.6 5.6 5.6 - 5.6 Nov-12

Excess - - -3.6 -3.6 -7.9 -6.5 -3.4 - -2.8 -

Blackrock Emerging Markets 139.9 6.0% -2.1 -2.1 6.4 12.4 8.4 - 7.9 Jan-12

Blackrock EM Performance Target - - -2.2 -2.2 6.5 11.9 8.0 - 7.6 Jan-12

Excess - - 0.1 0.1 -0.0 0.5 0.5 - 0.3 -

Blackrock Global Equity 636.0 27.4% 5.8 5.8 11.0 15.2 14.0 11.0 10.4 Apr-05

Blackrock Global Equity Performance Target - - 7.2 7.2 10.6 16.4 14.2 11.7 11.4 Apr-05

Excess - - -1.5 -1.5 0.4 -1.1 -0.2 -0.7 -0.9 -

Blackrock Aquila Life 311.1 13.4% 5.5 5.5 10.1 - - - 11.6 Feb-17

Blackrock Aquila Life Performance Target - - 5.2 5.2 7.7 - - - 8.8 Feb-17

Excess - - 0.3 0.3 2.5 - - - 2.8 -

WAMCO 305.8 13.2% -0.9 -0.9 1.0 6.5 7.1 7.7 6.3 Apr-05

WAMCO Performance Target - - -0.1 -0.1 2.5 7.6 8.2 8.6 7.8 Apr-05

Excess - - -0.8 -0.8 -1.5 -1.1 -1.1 -0.9 -1.5 -

WAMCO GMS 177.2 7.6% -3.8 -3.8 -3.0 2.7 3.3 - 3.3 Sep-11

WAMCO GMS Performance Target - - 0.7 0.7 2.5 2.5 2.5 - 2.6 Sep-11

Excess - - -4.5 -4.5 -5.5 0.2 0.8 - 0.8 -

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Summary of Performance - Net

Page 4 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 50



Actual Performance v Target Performance
Ending

Market Value
(Million)

Weight
(%)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.) Inception Date

Hermes 134.8 5.8% 2.4 2.4 10.9 9.8 12.8 7.1 6.9 Apr-05

Hermes Performance Target - - 2.3 2.3 10.8 8.8 11.6 5.4 5.7 Apr-05

Excess - - 0.0 0.0 0.1 1.0 1.1 1.7 1.2 -

CBREI 56.2 2.4% 2.9 2.9 9.6 8.0 10.0 - 9.4 Jun-11

CBREI Performance Target - - 2.2 2.2 10.6 9.0 11.6 - 9.3 Jun-11

Excess - - 0.7 0.7 -1.0 -1.0 -1.7 - 0.0 -

Golub 11.4 0.5% 9.0 9.0 7.5 - - - 7.5 Jul-17

Golub Performance Target - - 1.4 1.4 5.5 - - - 5.5 Jul-17

Excess - - 7.6 7.6 2.0 - - - 2.0 -

Bluebay 14.7 0.6% 1.2 1.2 - - - - 5.2 Aug-17

Bluebay Performance Target - - 1.4 1.4 - - - - 5.1 Aug-17

Excess - - -0.2 -0.2 - - - - 0.1 -

Yorkshire Fund Managers 5.6 0.2% 4.5 4.5 - - - - - Oct-17

Cash 26.0 1.1% 0.1 0.1 - - - - - Oct-17

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Summary of Performance - Net

Page 5 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 51



Fund Weight Target Weight

Equities Fixed Interest Property Other
0.00

15.00

30.00

45.00

60.00

75.00

Fund Weight Target Weight

Equities Fixed Interest Property Other
0.00

15.00

30.00

45.00

60.00

75.00

Quarter Ending 30 June 2018
Market Value at End of Quarter

(£000)
Actual % Allocation at End of

Quarter Strategic Asset Allocation % % Difference

Gloucestershire County Council 2,320,250 100.00 100.00 0.00

Equities 1,512,299 65.18 60.50 4.68

Aberdeen Standard Investments 425,270 18.33 18.50 -0.17

Blackrock Emerging Markets 139,856 6.03 4.00 2.03

Blackrock Global Equity 635,992 27.41 22.50 4.91

Blackrock Aquila Life 311,142 13.41 15.50 -2.09

Blackrock Cash 38 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fixed Interest 483,070 20.82 23.50 -2.68

WAMCO 305,840 13.18 19.50 -6.32

WAMCO GMS 177,231 7.64 4.00 3.64

Property 190,973 8.23 8.50 -0.27

Hermes 134,752 5.81 6.00 -0.19

CBREI 56,221 2.42 2.50 -0.08

Other 133,908 5.77 7.50 -1.73

Aberdeen Standard GARS 76,332 3.29 4.00 -0.71

Golub 11,361 0.49 1.90 -1.41

Bluebay 14,652 0.63 1.60 -0.97

Yorkshire Fund Managers 5,589 0.24 0.00 0.24

Cash 25,974 1.12 0.00 1.12

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Manager Attribution - Net

Page 6 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 52



Risk v Return - over 3 years

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark Aberdeen Standard Investments Aberdeen Standard Performance Target Aberdeen Standard GARS Aberdeen Standard GARS Performance Target

Blackrock Emerging Markets Blackrock EM Performance Target Blackrock Global Equity Blackrock Global Equity Performance Target WAMCO WAMCO Performance Target WAMCO GMS

WAMCO GMS Performance Target Hermes Hermes Performance Target CBREI CBREI Performance Target

0.00 4.00 8.00 12.00 16.00 20.00 24.00

Risk (Standard Deviation)

0.00

4.00

8.00

12.00

16.00

20.00

24.00

A
nn

ua
liz

ed
  R

et
ur

n
Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Ex Post Risk - Net

Page 7 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 53



Risk Statistics by Manager - over 3 years
Annualized

Return
Standard
Deviation

Benchmark
Return

Benchmark
Standard Deviation Tracking Error Information Ratio

Gloucestershire County Council 10.0 6.2 10.8 6.7 1.9 -0.5

Aberdeen Standard Investments 6.8 9.7 11.1 8.9 4.2 -1.0

Aberdeen Standard GARS -0.9 4.0 5.6 0.0 4.0 -1.6

Blackrock Emerging Markets 12.4 15.5 11.9 15.6 1.4 0.3

Blackrock Global Equity 15.2 9.5 16.4 9.6 1.7 -0.7

Blackrock Aquila Life

WAMCO 6.5 7.7 7.6 8.1 1.1 -1.0

WAMCO GMS 2.7 5.2 2.5 0.0 5.2 0.0

Hermes 9.8 2.1 8.8 2.5 2.7 0.4

CBREI 8.0 2.8 9.0 2.4 3.0 -0.3

Golub

Bluebay

Yorkshire Fund Managers

Cash

Blackrock Cash

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to June 30, 2018

Ex Post Risk - Net

Page 8 of 9
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 54



This report was prepared for you by State Street Bank and Trust Company (or its affiliates, “State Street”) utilizing scenarios, assumptions and reporting formats as mutually agreed between you and State Street.  While reasonable
efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this report, there is no guarantee, representation or warranty, express or implied, as to its accuracy or completeness.  This information is provided “as-
is” and State Street disclaims any and all liability and makes no guarantee, representation, or warranty with respect to your use of or reliance upon this information in making any decisions or taking (or not taking) any actions.  State
Street does not verify the accuracy or completeness of any data, including data provided by State Street for other purposes, or data provided by you or third parties.  You should independently review the report (including, without
limitation, the assumptions, market data, securities prices, securities valuations, tests and calculations used in the report), and determine that the report is suitable for your purposes.

State Street provides products and services to professional and institutional clients, which are not directed at retail clients.  This report is for informational purposes only and it does not constitute investment research or investment,
legal or tax advice, and it is not an offer or solicitation to buy or sell any product, service, or securities or any financial instrument, and it does not transfer rights of any kind (except the limited use and redistribution rights described
below) or constitute any binding contractual arrangement or commitment of any kind.  You may use this report for your internal business purposes and, if such report contains any data provided by third party data sources,
including, but not limited to, market or index data, you may not redistribute this report, or an excerpted portion thereof, to any third party, including, without limitation, your investment managers, investment advisers, agents,
clients, investors or participants, whether or not they have a relationship with you or have a reasonable interest in the report, without the prior written consent of each such third party data source.  You are solely responsible and
liable for any and all use of this report.

Copyright © 2018 State Street Corporation, All rights reserved.

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Pension Fund Risk Register
	Risk Register - Oct Pension Board FINAL

	4 Business Plan 2018/19
	5 Audit Findings Report
	6 Pension Administration Performance
	8 Investment Performance Report
	10 Exempt Minutes
	11 Independent Advisor Report
	12 PIRC Annual Fund Review

